Before the

Administrative Hearing Commission

State of Missouri

DIRECTOR OF INSURANCE,
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No.  98-2351 DI




)

GARY A. SCHNIEDERS,
)




)



Respondent.
)

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW


The Director of Insurance (Director) filed a complaint on August 13, 1998, seeking this Commission’s determination that the insurance agent license of Gary A. Schnieders is subject to discipline.  This Commission convened a hearing on the complaint on October 29, 1999.  Diane Garber, Counsel, represented the Director.  Schnieders presented his case. Our reporter filed the transcript on November 17, 1999.

Findings of Fact

1. Schnieders holds insurance agent License No. AT489568426, which is, and was at all relevant times, current and active.    

2. Schnieders was the president of Mid-America Bank in Jefferson City, Missouri (bank).  While employed in that position, he made two payments of $750 each with bank checks drawn on the bank’s funds.  Schnieders made the payments for his own personal legal services, unrelated to bank business, and hid them from the bank’s directors.  

3. On May 11, 1998, the United States District Court for the Western District of Missouri found Schnieders guilty, on his guilty plea, of two counts of misdemeanor misapplication of monies by a bank officer under 18 U.S.C. section 656.  The court imposed a sentence of three years probation and a fine of $10,000.  United States v. Schnieders, Case 

No. 2:98CR04002-001.  

Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction to hear the Director’s complaint.  Section 621.045.1, RSMo Supp. 1998.
  The Director has the burden of proving that Schnieders has committed an act for which the law allows discipline.  Missouri Real Estate Comm'n v. Berger, 764 S.W.2d 706, 711 

(Mo. App., E.D. 1989).  


The Director cites section 375.141.1(3), which allows discipline if Schnieders has:

(3) Been convicted of a felony or crime involving moral turpitude[.]

“Moral turpitude” is: 

an act of baseness, vileness, or depravity in the private and social duties which a man owes to his fellowman or to society in general, contrary to the accepted and customary rule of right and duty between man and man; everything ‘done contrary to justice, honesty, modesty, and good morals.’  

In re Frick, 694 S.W.2d 473, 479 (Mo. banc 1985) (quoting In re Wallace, 19 S.W.2d 625 (banc 1929)). 


Schnieders was convicted of violating 18 U.S.C. 656, which provides:

Whoever, being an officer, director, agent or employee of, or
connected in any capacity with any Federal Reserve bank, member
bank, depository institution holding company, national bank,
insured bank, branch or agency of a foreign bank, or organization
operating under section 25 or section 25(a) of the Federal Reserve 

Act, or a receiver of a national bank, insured bank, branch, agency, 

or organization or any agent or employee of the receiver, or a Federal Reserve Agent, or an agent or employee of a Federal Reserve Agent or of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, embezzles, abstracts, purloins or willfully
misapplies any of the moneys, funds or credits of such bank,
branch, agency, or organization or holding company or any moneys, funds, assets or securities intrusted to the custody or care of such bank, branch, agency, or organization, or holding company or to the custody or care of any such agent, officer, director, employee or receiver, shall be fined not more than $1,000,000 or imprisoned not more than 30 years, or both; but if the amount embezzled, abstracted, purloined or misapplied does not exceed $1,000, he shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than one year, or both. . . .

(emphasis added).  Schnieders argues that his actions did not constitute moral turpitude because he was merely following industry custom when he paid personal legal expenses with bank funds.  Nevertheless, section 375.141.1(3) focuses on whether there has been a conviction.  To misapply bank funds for his personal use violated Schnieders’ duties to the bank.  Therefore, we conclude that Schnieders was convicted of a crime involving moral turpitude.


Schnieders also argues that no one has ever complained about his insurance practice.  The statute does not limit its reach to crimes in the insurance business.  However, the Director may take into account Schnieders’ insurance business conduct when he decides the appropriate degree of discipline.  


Therefore, we conclude that Schnieders is subject to discipline under section 375.141.1(3) for having been convicted of a crime involving moral turpitude.  


SO ORDERED on December 2, 1999.



________________________________



SHARON M. BUSCH



Commissioner

�Statutory references are to the 1994 Revised Statutes of Missouri, unless otherwise noted.
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